
CITY COUNCIL BUSINESS MEETING AGENDA 

BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET, DAPHNE, AL 

                                                                        JUNE 4, 2012 

                                                                            6:30 P.M.                                                                           

 
 1.  CALL TO ORDER 

 2.  ROLL CALL/INVOCATION / PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE       

 

3.  APPROVE MINUTES:     Council meeting minutes / May 21, 2012 

 

PUBLIC HEARINGS:     2012 International Building Codes / Ordinance 2012-40 

                                            2012 International Fire Codes / Ordinance 2012-41 

 

PUBLIC HEARING:    Amend Land Use and Development Ordinance: 

a.) Landscape Provisions / 19-8(b) 

b.) Communications Tower Provisions / Add Section 32-3(d)(3)(i) 

          Ordinance 2012-42 

 

 

                                    

4. REPORT STANDING COMMITTEES: 
    A.  FINANCE COMMITTEE / Boulware    

    B.  BUILDINGS & PROPERTY COMMITTEE -  Lake        

    C.  PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE –   Boulware              

    D.  CODE ENFORCEMENT/ORDINANCE COMMITTEE  -  Reese            
    E.  PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE / SOLID WASTE AUTHORITY  - Conaway   

 

 

5. REPORTS OF SPECIAL BOARDS & COMMISSIONS:  

    A.  Board of Zoning Adjustments – Jones  

    B.  Downtown Redevelopment Authority – Barnette       

          Review minutes / May 30
th
  

 

    C.  Industrial Development Board –  Conaway             

    D.  Library Board – Lake   

  E.  Planning Commission – Barnette    
          Review minutes / April 26

th
  

   

    F.  Recreation Board – Reese     

    G.  Utility Board - Scott   

            

 

6.  REPORTS OF OFFICERS: 

     A.  Mayor’s Report    
     B.  City Attorney’s Report  

C. Department Head Comments    

 

 

7. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION:              

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
1



 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA                        JUNE 4, 2012                                      PAGE   2 

 

 

 

8. RESOLUTIONS & ORDINANCES: 

     

RESOLUTIONS: 

a.)   Bid Award: Well Road Extension to Hwy 13 /Asphalt Services, Inc. . . . . . . . . . . /Resolution 2012-35  

 
 

  ORDINANCES: 

 

          2
nd

  READ 
a.)   Appropriation of Funds: Well Road Extension to Hwy 13. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2012-33 

 

b.)   Amend Employee Handbook / Holiday Pay. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2012-34 

 

c.)   Amend Ordinance 2003-32 / Noise Ordinance. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2012-35 

 

d.)   Appropriation of Funds: Personnel & Capital Appropriations. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2012-36 

 

e.)  Appropriation of Funds: Website Integration for Animal Shelter & 

       Library Donations. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2012-37 

 

f.)   Appropriation of Funds:  Library Roof Water Test & Repairs. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2012-38 

 

g.)   Appropriation of Funds:  Douglas Road Resurfacing to Hwy 13. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2012-39 

 

 

 

         1
ST

 READ 

h.)   Adopting the 2012 International Building Codes. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2012-40 

 

i.)    Adopting the 2012 International Fire Codes. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2012-41 

 

j.)    Amendment to the Land Use & Development Ordinance / 

        Landscape Provisions / 19-8(b) / Communications Tower Provisions / 

       Add Section 32-3(d)(3)(i). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2012-42 

 

k.)   Fixing Speed & Establishing Speed Limits in the City of Daphne. . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2012-43 

 

9. COUNCIL COMMENTS                   

10.  ADJOURN 

2



CITY OF DAPHNE 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

 

ROLL CALL 

 

 

CITY COUNCIL:                                         CALL  VOTES   
 

COUNCILWOMAN CONAWAY               PRESENT       ABSENT            

 

COUNCILWOMAN BARNETTE    PRESENT       ABSENT            

 

COUNCILMAN LAKE   PRESENT       ABSENT            

 

COUNCILMAN REESE   PRESENT       ABSENT            

 

COUNCILMAN SCOTT   PRESENT       ABSENT            

 

COUNCIMAN BOULWARE     PRESENT       ABSENT            

 

COUNCILMAN PALUMBO   PRESENT       ABSENT         

    

MAYOR 

 

MAYOR YELDING    PRESENT       ABSENT            

 

CITY CLERK: 

 

DAVID L. COHEN                 PRESENT___    ABSENT___ 

 

CITY ATTORNEY: 
 

CITY ATTORNEY JAY ROSS  PRESENT       ABSENT    

 

 

MINUTE NOTES: 

 

 

                                                             

 

                                                             

 

                                                             

 

                                                             

 

3



                                                             

 

                                                             

 

                                                             

 

 

      CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

MINUTES 

 

NOTES: 

 

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                   

 

COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATIONS 

 

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                    

                                                                                                             

4



MAY 21, 2012 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 
 

1 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER 

 Council President Barnette called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. 

 

2. ROLL CALL/INVOCATION/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 
 The invocation was given by Councilman Boulware. 

 

COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT:  Tommie Conaway; Cathy Barnette, Kelly Reese, arrived 

at 7:00 p.m.; Ron Scott; Derek Boulware. 

 

ABSENT:  John Lake, August Palumbo. 

 

ALSO PRESENT:  Rebecca Hayes, Assistant City Clerk; Erick Bussey, City Attorney; James 

White, Fire Chief; Margaret Thigpen, Civic Center Director; Christine Ciancetta, Deputy 

Finance Director; David McKelroy, Recreation Director; Captain Scott Taylor, Police 

Department; Richard Johnson, Public Works Director; Vickie Hinman, Human Resources 

Director; Tonja Young, Library Director; Danny Dillard, Site Containment Inspector; Sandi 

Cushway, Public Works Administrative Assistant; Denise Penry, Public Works 

Accountant/EMA Assistant; Scott Hutchinson, City Engineer; Willie Robison, BZA; Larry 

Cooke, BZA; Dorothy Morrison, Beautification Committee; Bob Segalla, Utility Board. 

 

ABSENT:  Mayor Yelding; David Carpenter, Police Chief; Kim Briley, Finance Director; David 

Cohen, City Clerk. 

 

Council President Barnette announced that the Mayor would not be present as he is attending his 

granddaughter’s graduation, Mr. Lake is attending the Alabama League Convention and Mr. 

Palumbo is sick. 

 

  

3. APPROVE MINUTES: 

 

MOTION BY Councilwoman Conaway to adopt the May 7, 2012 council meeting minutes.  

Seconded by Councilman Scott. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR        NAY    NONE OPPOSED          MOTION CARRIED 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Boulware to adopt the May 14, 2012 council work session 

minutes.  Seconded by Councilman Scott. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR          NAY    NONE OPPOSED        MOTION CARRIED 

 

PROCLAMATION:   Public Works Week / May 21-25, 2012 

 

5



MAY 21, 2012 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 
 

2 
 

Councilwoman Conaway read and presented the proclamation to the Public Works Director, 

Richard Johnson. 

 

Mr. Johnson invited everyone to come out for Public Works Day at Lott Park on Wednesday, 

May 23
rd

.        

 

 

4. REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEES: 

 A. FINANCE – Boulware 

The minutes for the May 14
th

 meeting are in the packet. 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Boulware to accept the Treasurers report as of April 30, 2012, 

in the amount of $19,534,218.50.  Seconded by Councilman Scott. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR          NAY    NONE OPPOSED          MOTION CARRIED 

 

Sales & Use Tax Collections / March 31, 2012 

 

Sales and Use Tax Collected for March 2012    -   $1,013,135 

Sales and Use Tax Budgeted for March 2012    -   $   996,615               

Over Budget (for March)                                  -  $    16,520 

 

YTD Budget Collections Variance – Over Budget - $63,493  

 

Lodging Tax Collections, March 31, 2012  

 

The Lodging Tax Collections report shows $70,058.33 collected for March 2012. 

 

Summary Report: Revenues, Expenditures, & Changes in Fund Balance - September 30, 

2011 

 

The pre-close Statement of Revenues, Expenditures & Changes in Fund Balance at September 

30, 2011 was presented showing expenditures over revenues for FY 2011 of ($758,296), and an 

unreserved fund balance of $11,429,899. 

 

Summary Report: Revenues, Expenditures, & Changes in Fund Balance – March 31, 2012 

 

The Summary Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, & Changes in Fund Balance at March 31, 

2012 was presented showing expenditures over revenues of ($1,148,127), and an unreserved 

fund balance of $10,281,772.  It was discussed that with the approved budget adjustments not yet 

spent, the unreserved fund balance will be reduced to $8,793,978. 

 

 

6



MAY 21, 2012 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 
 

3 
 

Schedule of FY 12 Budget Adjustments 

 

A schedule of General Fund FY 12 budget adjustments made to date totaling $2,679,923 was 

presented.  

    

The next meeting will be June 11
th

 at 4:00 p.m. in the Executive Conference Room.   

 

 B. BUILDINGS AND PROPERTY COMMITTEE – Lake 

No report. 

 

 C. PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE – Boulware 

The minutes for the May 9
th

 meeting are in the packet.  No report. 

 

 D. CODE ENFORCEMENT / ORDINANCE COMMITTEE – Boulware 

The minutes for the May 9
th

 meeting are in the packet.  No report. 

 

 E. PUBLIC WORKS / SOLID WASTE AUTHORITY – Conaway 

The minutes for the April 16
th

 meeting are in the packet.  The committee met this afternoon 

before the council meeting, and Mr. Johnson said that he should hear this week if the city will 

receive the ATRIP grant. 

 

5. REPORTS OF SPECIAL BOARDS & COMMISSIONS: 

 A. Board of Zoning Adjustments – Adrienne Jones 

There were 20 pages of minutes so Mrs. Jones did a summary of the meeting for the packet. 

 

 B. Downtown Redevelopment Authority – Barnette 

The Authority will meet next Wednesday at 5:30 p.m. 

 

 C. Industrial Development Board – Conaway 

No report. 

 

 D. Library Board – Lake 

No report. 

 

 E. Planning Commission – Barnette 

The Planning Commission will meet Thursday at 5:00 in the Council Chambers. 

 

 F. Recreation Board – Reese 

No report. 

 

 

7



MAY 21, 2012 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 
 

4 
 

 G. Utility Board – Scott 

The next meeting will be the last Wednesday of the month.  They had a special meeting to 

discuss the mid-year budget last week.  They reviewed the capital improvement plan, and it 

shows that they need to invest roughly $3 million a year over the next 10 years.  A lot of it is 

mandatory from the standpoint of ADEM and the EPA.  They are on line to make all those 

projects happen.  

 

 

6. REPORTS OF THE OFFICERS: 

 A. Mayor’s Report 

  a.)  Special Events Permit / S.E.E.D.S. / Mama Mia Cook Off / November 12, 2012 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Boulware to approve the Special Events Permit / S.E.E.D.S. / 

Mama Mia Cook Off / November 12, 2012.  Seconded by Councilman Scott. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR          NAY    NONE OPPOSED          MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

   b.)  Parade Permit / 9
th

 Annual Classic Rock 5K and 1 Mile Fun Run 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Boulware to approve the Parade Permit / 9
th

 Annual Classic 

Rock 5K and 1 Mile Fun Run.  Seconded by Councilwoman Conaway. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR          NAY    NONE OPPOSED          MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

 

 B. City Attorney Report 

 There is currently pending in the circuit court of Baldwin County an appeal from Daphne 

Municipal Court wherein the city’s Noise Ordinance is being challenged.  After numerous 

conversations with Jim Scroggins, the City Prosecutor, Mr. Ross is analyzing the current Noise 

Ordinance as it reads now, there are some changes that have been recommended, and they were  

forwarded  to the Ordinance Committee, and it is his understanding the committee recommended 

it to be forwarded to council for approval.  Hopefully, tomorrow he will forward a synopsis to 

council of the changes made to the ordinance. 

 

Councilman Scott asked if council approves the changes to the Noise Ordinance will that settle 

the lawsuit. 

 

Mr. Bussey said it is understanding that will be a part of the recommended settlement. 

 

 

8



MAY 21, 2012 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 
 

5 
 

 

 C. Department Head Comments 

James Whites – Fire Chief - Firefighters injured in Apartment fire are ok and back at work. 

They will be an extension training site for the Fire College, Mobile and Orange Beach Fire 

Depts. were giving Regional Training distinctions. 

Tonja Young – Library Director - The library had a lot of fun activities planned for children and 

teens at the library this summer.  All the activities are free and we have things geared to the 

enjoyment of each age group.  They have also purchased new materials for everyone's summer 

enjoyment and we hope everyone will come out and use the library this summer. Councilman 

Palumbo's book signing the previous week had been a great success.  The kickoff for the summer 

reading program will be June 4
th

 at 10:00 at the Civic Center. 
 

Vickie Hinman – Human Resources Director – said that employee training sessions are 

currently being held on FMLA and short-term disability. 

 

Richard Johnson – Public Works Director – announced that the dedication program for the 

Patriots Point Memorial will be Friday, May 25
th

, which is located in front of the Civic Center 

Complex.  The program will honor all those who have served, who are serving and who will 

serve in the armed forces.  He invited all to come out. 

 

7. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION: 

Mr. Kevin Spriggs – Owner Eastern Shore Motel – spoke regarding Resolution 2012-39 which 

is in reference to the work on directional turn lanes on US Hwy 98 in front of the Shell station 

and the Exon station.  He is concerned that the State has not addressed the traffic which would be 

harmful to businesses that are along the right-of-way.  He said there is no directional signage 

planned to direct tourist back to I-10.  The intersection by Zaxsby’s will be handling all the 

return traffic to I-10, and there are no improvements on the drawings to that intersection.  

Already at that site the turn lane does not meet highway department specifications, and if they do 

it is barely.  Also, the turn lane does not have the stacking capacity that it needs to service all the 

traffic, because it will be  handling all the traffic from the Hampton Inn, Burger King, Shell 

station, Wendy’s and Zaxsby’s which now all traffic will be returning to I-to through that 

intersection, and there are absolutely no improvements according to the drawings in the packet.  

He asked council to table the resolution until they can address some of these problems with the 

highway department.  

 

 

8. RESOLUTIONS, ORDINANCES, ORDERS AND OTHER BUSINESS: 

  

 RESOLUTIONS: 

RESOLUTIONS: 

a.)  ALDOT: Construction of Directional Turn Lanes . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Resolution 2012-39 

 

9



MAY 21, 2012 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 
 

6 
 

b.)  ALDOT: Resurfacing I-10 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Resolution 2012-40 

     

c.)  Approve Participation in the State of Alabama Severe Weather 

       Preparedness Tax Holiday for the Year 2012. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Resolution 2012-41 

 

d.)  Declare Certain Personal Property Surplus . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Resolution 2012-42 

 

f.)   Bid Award: Sod & Hay / Woerner Turf. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Resolution 2012-43 

 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to waive the reading of Resolutions 2012-39, 2012-40, 

2012-41, 2012-42 and 2012-43.  Seconded by Councilwoman Conaway. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR         NAY    NONE OPPOSED           MOTION CARRIED 

 

NOTE:  Councilman Reese arrived at 7:00 p.m. 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Boulware to table Resolution 2012-39 until further consideration of the 

issues raised by Mr. Spriggs.  Seconded by Councilwoman Conaway. 

 
Mr. Richard Johnson, Public Works Director, stated that all the resolution is doing is saying that  

during construction there will be no parking within the right-of-way.  It has nothing to do with the 

project.   The project is done.  They have gone through the process over two (2) year ago, and it was 

vetted through the Planning Commission, and it was designed by Volkert through the guidance of 

ALDOT’s input, and they met with Mr. Spriggs, and there are improvements to the turn lane, 

although, they are not structural, but  they are in the form of marking.  He asked council to please 

understand that the resolution is a procedural thing required by ALDOT for them to move this 

project forward.  He said council could table, but he told them they will lose a free $150,000 safety 

improvement project.  This project has been on the books for over two years.  He wanted to 

reiterate that all the resolution is doing is stating that there will be no parking on the right-of-way 

during construction. 

 
AYE    Boulware          NAY    Conaway, Scott, Palumbo              ABSTAIN    Reese 

 

                                                      MOTION FAILED 
 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to adopt Resolution 2012-39.  Seconded by Councilman 

Boulware. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR          NAY    NONE OPPOSED          MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

10



MAY 21, 2012 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 
 

7 
 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to adopt Resolution 2012-40.  Seconded by Councilwoman 

Conaway. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR          NAY    NONE OPPOSED          MOTION CARRIED 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to adopt Resolution 2012-41.  Seconded by Councilman 

Boulware. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR          NAY    NONE OPPOSED           MOTION CARRIED 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Boulware to adopt Resolution 2012-42.  Seconded by 

Councilwoman Conaway. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR          NAY    NONE OPPOSED          MOTION CARRIED 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Boulware to adopt Resolution 2010-43.  Seconded by 

Councilman Scott. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR         NAY    NONE OPPOSED          MOTION CARRIED 

 

 
  ORDINANCES: 

 

          1
ST

 READ 

a.)   Amend Employee Handbook / Holiday Pay . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2012-34 

 

b.)   Amend Ordinance 2003-32 / Noise Ordinance . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2012-35 

 

c.)   Appropriation of Funds: Personnel & Capital Appropriations . . . . . ./Ordinance 2012-36 

 

d.)  Appropriation of Funds: Website Integration for Animal Shelter & 

       Library Donations  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2012-37 

 

e.)   Appropriation of Funds:  Library Roof Water Test & Repairs . . . . . . /Ordinance 2012-38 

 

g.)   Appropriation of Funds:  Douglas Road Resurfacing to Hwy 13. . . . . ./Ordinance 2012-39 

 

 

11



MAY 21, 2012 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 
 

8 
 

ORDINANCES 2012-34, 2012-35, 2012-36, 2012-37, 2012-38 AND 2012-39 

WERE MADE 1
ST

 READ. 
   

 

 

 

9. COUNCIL COMMENTS: 

No council comments. 

 

 

10. ADJOURN: 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to adjourn.  Seconded by Councilwoman Conaway. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR          NAY    NONE OPPOSED          MOTION CARRIED 

 

 
There being no further business to discuss the meeting adjourned at 7:10 p.m. 

 

12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
STANDING COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATIONS: 

 
FINANCE COMMITTEE REPORT 

 
                                                                    
                                                                   

                                                                  
 
                                                                  
 
                                                                  
 

BUILDINGS & PROPERTY COMMITTEE REPORT  
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    

PLANNING/ZONING/CODE ENFORCEMENT COMMITTEE REPORT 
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
 

PUBLIC SAFETY/ORDINANCE COMMITTEE REPORT 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    

                                                                  
 
                                                                  
 

PUBLIC WORKS/BEAUTIFICATION/MUSEUM COMMITTEE  REPORT 
 
                                                                  
 
                                                                  

34



CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
REPORTS OF SPECIAL COMMITTEES 

 
NOTES: 
 
BOARD OF ZONING ADJUSTMENTS REPORT:
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
DOWNTOWN REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY REPORT: 
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT BOARD: 
 
                                                                   
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
LIBRARY BOARD: 
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
PLANNING COMMISSION REPORT: 
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
RECREATION BOARD REPORT: 
 
                                                                    
UTILITY BOARD REPORT: 
 
                                                                          
 
 
 

35



DOWNTOWN REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY                

DAPHNE, AL 

1705 MAIN STREET                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                              
MAY 30, 2012 

5:30 P.M. 

 

1.   CALL TO ORDER/ROLLCALL 

There was not a quorum of members present. 

 

Members Present: Casey Zito Ken Balme; Ronald Nero;. 

  

ABSENT: Mary Beth Mantiply; Doug Bailey; Dayna Oldham. 

 

Also present: Cathy Barnette, Council Liaison Rebecca Hayes, recording secretary; Karen 

Nady, Olde Towne Daphne West Association. 

 

 

The members present discussed: 

 

1.) A proposal presented by Mr. David Calametti with Alabama Coastal Magazine. 

2.) The Olde Towne map 

3.) Mini-Grant form 

4.) Bank Account 

 

The meeting adjourned at 7:05 p.m. 

 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

Downtown Redevelopment Authority       

 

 

 

 

 

                                         

36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
MAYOR'S REPORT 

 
 

NOTES: 
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                   
 
                                                                   
 
                                                                   
 
                                                                   
 
                                                                   
  
 
 
 
 

56



CITY ATTORNEY’S REPORT 
 
NOTES:                                                              
                                                                   
 
                                                                   
 
                                                                   
 
                                                                   
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                   
 
                                                                    

                                                                    
DEPARTMENT HEAD’S COMMENTS  

 
                                                                   
 
                                                                   
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                   
 

                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                   
 
      
 
 
 
 

57



 
 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
RESOLUTIONS, ORDINANCES, ORDERS & OTHER BUSINESS 

 
NOTES: 
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                   
 
 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
 
COUNCIL COMMENTS: 
 
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
                                                                    
 
 
 
 

58



RESOLUTION 2012-35 
  2012-I-WELL ROAD EXTENSION TO HIGHWAY 13 

  
 
WHEREAS, the City of Daphne is required under section 39-1-1(E) of the Code of Alabama to 
secure competitive bids for public works contracts in excess of $ 50,000; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Daphne acknowledges that WELL ROAD EXTENSION TO HIGHWAY 13 will 
exceed $50,000; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Daphne did receive and review bids for the WELL ROAD EXTENSION 
TO HIGHWAY 13 and has determined that the bid as presented is reasonable; and 
 
WHEREAS, staff recommends the bid for WELL ROAD EXTENSION TO HIGHWAY 13 be 
awarded to Asphalt Services, Inc.. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, AND IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED, THAT THE 
MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, hereby accept the bid from                   
Asphalt Services, Inc. in the amount of $207,028.50 as specified in BID SPECIFICATION 
NO. 2012-I-WELL ROAD EXTENSION TO HIGHWAY 13. 
 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Daphne, 
Alabama, this _         day of _                      , 2012. 
 

________________________________ 
                                                                       Cathy S. Barnette, Council President 
                                                                        
     

                                                                                                                                                                                              
                                                                      _________________________________ 
                                                                       Bailey Yelding, Jr., Mayor 
                                                                            
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________ 
David L. Cohen, City Clerk MMC 

59



ORDINANCE 2012-33 
 
 

Well Road Extension to Highway 13 
 
WHEREAS, Ordinance 2011-81 approved and adopted the Fiscal Year 2012 
Budget on November 21, 2011; and 
 
WHEREAS, subsequent to the adoption of the Fiscal Year 2012 budget, the City 
Council has determined that certain appropriations are required and should be 
approved and made a part of the Fiscal Year 2012 budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, Well Road needs to be extended from Public Works Road to County 
Road 13 ( .265 miles) and the project was bid; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council has determined it to be in the best interest of the City 
to obtain bids for this project and $21,930 was previously approved for design 
engineering services; and 
 
WHEREAS,   the project was bid and the cost for construction is $207,028.50 and 
additional engineering & testing is $30,400 (Total Project cost is $259,359.50). 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, 
Alabama, that funds in the amount of $237,429.50 (includes additional engineering + bid 

cost)  from the General Fund are appropriated to be transferred to Capital Reserve 
made a part of the Fiscal Year 2012 budget for the Well Road Extension project.   
 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of 
Daphne, Alabama, this   ____     day of  ________________  , 2012. 
 

 
         
                                                                      ________________________________ 

Cathy S. Barnette, Council President    
 
     

_________________________________ 
                                                                       Bailey Yelding, Jr., Mayor 
           
 
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________ 
David L. Cohen, City Clerk, MMC 

60



CITY OF DAPHNE 

ORDINANCE NO.: 2012-34 

 

 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND SECTIONS 9.3.3 AND 9.4.4.2  OF THE CITY’S  

EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK  

 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Daphne, after due consideration believes 

that certain revisions to the City of Daphne Employee Handbook are necessary for the proper 

administration of said Handbook and the policies contained therein; and 

 

WHEREAS, said revisions to the Employee Handbook will enable the City to more 

easily facilitate and administer provisions of the Employee Handbook in order to benefit the 

health, safety, and welfare of its employees;  

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA AS FOLLOWS: 

 

SECTION I: REVISION TO SECTION 9.3.3 

 

 That Section 9.3.3 of the Employee Handbook, be and is hereby deleted in its entirety and 

is replaced as follows: 

 

 9.3.3 Holiday Pay.  All eligible employees will receive holiday pay in lieu of their regular 

pay for all city holidays.  The amount of holiday pay paid to each employee will be based upon an 

eight (8) hour work day.  If an employee is a twelve (12) or twenty four (24) hours shift employee 

and takes the holiday off, the employee will be paid eight (8) hour holiday with the remaining  

hours as vacation, sick, or leave without pay, whichever is applicable.  If a non-exempt employee 

is required to work the holiday, he will receive both holiday pay and pay for the hours he actually 

works.  The pay that he receives for the hours worked will be calculated at his regular rate of pay.  

An exempt employee will not be paid for the hours he works on a holiday, since he is paid a 

salary for accomplishing his assigned job.  However, he may take time off at a later date, with the 

concurrence of his supervisor. 

 

SECTION II: REVISION TO SECTION 9.4.4.2 

 

 That Section 9.4.4.2 of the Employee Handbook, be and is hereby deleted in its entirety 

and is replaced as follows: 

 

 9.4.4.2. Bereavement.  Bereavement leave is intended to provide an eligible employee  

61



ORDINANCE 2012-34                    AMEND EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK                             PAGE   2 

 

time off with pay for purposes of attending to personal matters associated with the death of a 

close family member and/or for attending a family member’s funeral.  Up to twenty four (24) 

hours of bereavement leave will be granted an employee who has a death in his immediate 

family.  Immediate family is defined as follows:  Spouse, children, parents, grandparents, 

grandchildren, brothers, sisters, or the equivalent relations of the employee’s spouse.  Included 

within the definition of family are those persons who live with the family as a member of the 

family whether related or not.  If additional time off is required beyond the bereavement leave 

days authorized, an employee may request vacation leave or leave without pay.   

 

 SECTION III: REPEALER  

 

  That any Ordinance, or parts thereof, heretofore adopted by the City Council of Daphne, 

Alabama, which is in conflict with this Ordinance be and is hereby repealed to the extent of such 

conflict. 

  

SECTION IV: SEVERABILITY 

 

 If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase, or portion of this ordinance is for any 

reason held invalid or unconstitutional by any court of competent jurisdiction, such portion shall 

be deemed a separate, distinct and independent provision and such holding shall not affect the 

validity of the remaining portions hereof.    

 

SECTION V: EFFECTIVE DATE. 

        This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after the date of its approval by the 

City Council of the City of Daphne and publication as required by law. 

 

ADOPTED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

DAPHNE, ALABAMA, THIS____ DAY OF _______, 2012. 

 

 

___________________________ 

  CATHY BARNETTE, 

                                                    CITY COUNCIL PRESIDENT 

                                                   

___________________________ 

BAILEY YELDING, JR., 

MAYOR                                        
             

ATTEST: 

 

_____________________________ 

DAVID COHEN,  

CITY CLERK, MMC 

 

62



CITY OF DAPHNE 

ORDINANCE 2012 – 35 

_______________________________________________________________  

 

ORDINANCE TO AMEND ORDINANCE 2003-32 REGULATING NOISE 

________________________________________________________________ 

 

WHEREAS, Ordinance 2003-32 was approved and adopted December 15, 2003, to 

establish standards to eliminate and reduce unnecessary and excessive noises detrimental to 

individuals and the community in the enjoyment of life, property, and the conduct of 

business; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council for the City of Daphne, Alabama, has determined that 

various sections of Ordinance 2003-32 should be amended to eliminate any vagueness and 

ambiguity, and to further promote the enforcement of the aforementioned Ordinance; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council for the City of Daphne, Alabama, has deemed it to be 

within the health, safety, and welfare of the citizens of Daphne, Alabama, to amend 

Ordinance 2003-32; 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of 

Daphne, Alabama that Section I of Ordinance 2003-32 is hereby deleted in its entirety and 

replaced as the following:   

 

SECTION I:  ILLEGAL NOISES-LOUD, DISTURBING OR UNNECESSARY,    

PROHIBITED 

 

 A. No person shall make, continue or cause to be made or continued any noise 

which either annoys, disturbs, injures or endangers the comfort, repose, health, peace or 

safety of others in the City. It shall also be unlawful and a nuisance for any person to permit 

any such noise to be made in any house or upon any premises owned or possessed by him or 

under his management or control. 

 

 B. The following acts, and the causing thereof, are declared to be in violation of 

this section, but such enumeration shall not be deemed to be exclusive: 

 

1.) Horns, signaling, devices, etc.  

 

a.) The sounding of any horn or signal device on any automobile, 

motorcycle, bus or other vehicle, except as a danger warning when 

and as required by ordinances of the City of Daphne or by the Code 

of Alabama; or 

 

b.) The sounding of such signaling device for any period of time 

exceeding that in which the warned person or persons are alerted 

thereto; or 

 

 
 

63



ORDINANCE 2012-35               AMENDING NOISE ORDINANCE                  PAGE   2 
 

c)     The use of any such signaling device when traffic is held up for 

any reason; or 

 

d)     The use of any horn, whistle or other device operated by engine 

exhaust. 

 

2.)    Animals, birds, etc. 

 

The keeping of any animal or bird which causes repeated noise which is 

plainly audible to any person inside a commercial, residential, multifamily 

dwelling or public place between the hours of 10:00 p.m. and 7:00 a.m. 

 

3.)    Stationary non-emergency, signaling devices. 

 

a)    The sounding or permitting the sounding of any signal from any 

stationary bell, chime, siren, whistle or similar device intended primarily 

for non-emergency purposes, from any place, for more than one minute in 

any hourly period. 

 

b) Any such bell, chime and similar device used in conjunction with 

places of religious worship shall be exempt from the operation of this 

provision. 

 

4.)    Exhausts 

 

The discharge into the open air of the exhaust of any steam engine or 

internal combustion engine of any motor boat or motor vehicle except through a 

muffler or other in good working order and in constant operation. The sound 

therefrom such shall not be plainly audible outside a radius of fifty (50) feet. 

 

5.)    Fireworks 

 

The explosion of firecrackers, skyrockets, roman candles, pinwheels or 

any other form of fireworks, except the display of fireworks in public parks or     

other open places within the City under a permit issued by the fire marshal 

pursuant to the fire prevention code of the City or as provided in Ordinance No. 

1994-09. 

 

6.)    Loudspeakers, amplifiers, etc. for commercial advertising purpose. 

 

The use, operation or permitting the use or operation of any drum, bell,   

horn, musical, instrument, stereo, loud speaker, amplifier, public address system 

or other instrument or device or the production or reproduction of sound which 

casts sound upon the public streets for the purpose of commercial advertising or  

intending to attract attention to any building, structure, performance, show, sale or 

display of merchandise, or for any other commercial advertising purposes. 

7.)    Radios, stereos, television sets, musical instruments, etc. 

64



ORDINANCE 2012-35               AMENDING NOISE ORDINANCE                  PAGE   3 
 

 

a)    The operating, playing or permitting the operation or playing of any 

device, radio, television, stereo, drum, musical instrument, sound amplifier 

or similar device which produces, reproduces or amplifies sound in such a 

manner as to create any sound or noise which exceed 60 dB [during the 

hours of 10:00 p.m. until 7:00 a.m.] at any property line within a 

residential district or upon any public street of right-of-way within, or 

bordering upon any residential district within the corporate limits of the 

City of Daphne; or     

 

b)    The operating, playing or permitting the operation or playing of any 

device, radio, television, stereo, drum, musical instrument, sound amplifier 

or similar device which produces, reproduces or amplifies sound in such a 

manner as to be plainly audible outside a radius of twenty-five (25) feet to 

any person inside a commercial, residential, multifamily dwelling or 

public place [during the hours of 10:00 p.m. until 7:00 a.m.].  This 

includes, but is not limited to, any low level rhythmic base component of 

music sufficient to constitute a violation thereof; or 

 

c)    The operation of any device, radio, television, personal stereo, 

cassette player, compact disc player, digitally stored audio or video player, 

musical instrument, sound amplifier or similar device which produces, 

reproduces or amplifies sound by a passenger on a common carrier or by a 

pedestrian on the street without the use of an external ear plug speaker in 

such a manner as to be plainly audible to any person other than the player 

or operator of the devise at a distance of twenty-five (25) feet. 

 

8.)    Unreasonable sound amplification from a vehicle. 

 

a)    The operation or permitting of the operation of any sound 

amplification system which is plainly audible outside a radius of twenty-

five (25) feet when the vehicle is on a public highway or on premises open 

to the public, unless that system is being operated to request assistance or 

warn of a hazardous situation. 

 

b)    This section does not apply to: 

 

i.    Emergency vehicles 

 

ii.    Vehicles operated by utilities 

 

             iii.    Sound systems of vehicles used for advertising in parades, 

political or other, special events or when properly permitted by the 

City Council. 

 

 

 

65



ORDINANCE 2012-35               AMENDING NOISE ORDINANCE                  PAGE   4 
 

9.)    Defect in vehicle or load. 

 

The use or operation of any automobile, motorcycle or other vehicle which 

by its physical state of repair, physical state of disrepair or by the manner in 

which it is loaded creates any grating, grinding, rattling or other noise which is 

plainly audible outside a radius of fifty (50) feet when the vehicle is on a public 

highway or on premises open to the public. 

 

10.)    Emergency signaling devices. 

 

Sounding or permitting the sounding of any exterior burglar alarm or any 

motor vehicle burglar alarm unless such alarm is automatically terminated within 

fifteen minutes of activation unless there has been an attempted or actual entry of 

the premises or vehicle. 

 

11.)    Domestic power equipment. 

 

a) The operating or permitting the operation out of doors in a residential 

area or area adjacent to a residential area, of any mechanically powered 

saw, sander, drill, grinder, lawn and garden equipment, or similar device, 

between the hour of 10:00 p.m. and 7:00 a.m. so as to cause a noise 

disturbance across a residential property boundary. 

 

b) For the purposes of this subsection (B)(11), lawn and garden equipment 

shall be defined as any gas or electric powered mower, edger, blower, 

trimmer, tiller, or other, whether commercial or homeowner grade. 

 

12.)    Construction 

 

a)  Any and all activity incidental to the erection, demolition, assembling, 

altering, repairing, installing, or equipping of buildings, structures, roads, 

or appurtenances thereto, including land clearing, grading, excavating and 

filling between the hours of 10:00 p.m. and 7:00 a.m. in a residential area, 

or area adjacent to a residential area, so as to cause a noise disturbance 

across a residential property boundary. 

 

b)   Emergency repair or maintenance of public roads and highways parks, 

sewers, water, electric, gas or telephone systems at any time or any such 

private construction necessary to restore property to a safe condition 

following a public calamity or work required to protect persons or 

property from eminent exposure to danger shall be exempt from the 

operation of this provision. 

 

13.)    Noises near schools, courts, churches or hospitals. 

 

The creation of any noise on any street adjacent to any school, institution 

of learning, church or court which the same is in use, or adjacent to any hospital,  

66



ORDINANCE 2012-35               AMENDING NOISE ORDINANCE                  PAGE   5 
 

nursing home or similar facility which is plainly audible within said school, 

institution of learning, church or court which the same is in use, or any hospital, 

nursing home or similar facility, provided that construction signs are displayed in 

such street indication that the same is a school, hospital church or court street and 

specifying the hours and days of which such regulation is to be effective. 

 

C.    The provisions of Section I heretofore shall not apply to: 

 

1.) Any bell or chime from any clock, school or church. 

 

2.) Any siren, whistle, horn or bell used by emergency vehicles or any 

other alarm systems used in case of fire, collision, civil defense, burglary, 

police activity, except as otherwise provided herein. 

 

3.) Any construction equipment utilized in the activities described in 

Section I (B)(12)(a) of this Ordinance and operated upon residential, 

commercial, industrial or public premises during the time period between 

7:00 a.m. and 10:00 p.m.; provided however, that operation of 

construction equipment between the hours of 10:00 p.m. and 7:00 a.m. 

shall not exceed a sound level of 80 dB when measured at a minimum of 

fifty (50) feet from the noise source, and further provide that such 

equipment shall be equipped with a properly installed muffler in good 

working order. 

 

4.) Any domestic power equipment operated upon any residential, 

commercial, industrial or public premises during the time period between 

7:00 a.m. and 10:00 p.m., provided that such equipment does not exceed a 

sound level of 80 dB when measured at a minimum of Fifty (50) feet from 

the noise source. 

 

5.) Licensed refuge collection vehicles operating during the time period 

between 6:00 a.m. and 9:00 p.m., provided, however, sound omitted from 

license refuge collection vehicles operated upon or within 150 feet of any 

residential premises between the hours of 9:00 p.m. and 6:00 a.m. shall not 

be plainly audible outside a radius of fifty (50) feet when the vehicle is on 

a public highway or on premises open to the public. 

 

6.)  The emission of sound for the purpose of alarming persons to the 

existence of an emergency; or 

 

7.)    The emission of sound in the performance of emergency work. 

 

D. Except as provided, the Mayor shall have the right to waive any or all of the 

requirements of Section I in cases of emergency where the welfare of persons 

or property may be jeopardized by their strict enforcement or on such special 

occasions as the governing body may determine. Exemptions from the 

requirements of Section I (b)(7)(a) relating to the time periods during which  

67



ORDINANCE 2012-35               AMENDING NOISE ORDINANCE                  PAGE   6 
 

radios, phonographs, television sets, musical instruments, etc. may be 

operated and may only be granted: 

 

1) During weekends, legal holidays (or eve thereof), or school vacations;  

    and, 

 

2) After due consideration of the factors set forth in Section I (B)(5). 

 

SECTION II: REAFFIRMATION 

 

 That all other provisions ordinance 2003-32 shall remain in full force and effect. 

 

SECTION III. SEVERABILITY 

 

 If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase, or portion of this Ordinance is 

for any reason held invalid or unconstitutional by any court of competent jurisdiction, 

such portion shall be deemed a separate, distinct and independent provision and such 

holding shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions hereof.    

 

SECTION IV: EFFECTIVE DATE 

         This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after the date of its 

approval by the City Council of the City of Daphne and publication as required by law. 

 

 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, 

Alabama, this   ____     day of ___________  , 2012. 
                                                                             

 

________________________________ 

Cathy Barnette, Council President 

 

     

________________________________ 

                                                                Bailey Yelding, Jr., Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 
 

___________________________ 

David L. Cohen, City Clerk MMC 

 

68



ORDINANCE 2012 - 36 
 
 

Fiscal 2012:  Personnel & Capital Appropriations 
 
 
WHEREAS, Ordinance 2011-81 approved and adopted the Fiscal Year 2012 
Budget on November 21, 2011; and 
 
WHEREAS, subsequent to the adoption of the Fiscal Year 2012 budget, the Mayor 
and City Council have reviewed the financial position of the City and considered 
certain personnel and capital needs not otherwise approved with the adoption of 
the 2012 budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, such items are necessary for the City’s operations.     
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, 
Alabama, that funds in the amount of $ 792,288 from the General Fund are hereby 
appropriated and made a part of the Fiscal Year 2012 budget for purposes outlined 
by the Mayor and reviewed by the City Council. (Personnel: 174,356; Capital 
617,932)  
 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of 
Daphne, Alabama, this ____  day of  ________________  , 2012. 
 
         
                                                                      ________________________________ 

Cathy S. Barnette, Council President 
                           

 
_________________________________ 

                                                                       Bailey Yelding, Jr. , Mayor 
       
 
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________ 
David L. Cohen, City Clerk, MMC 

69



 

Available Capital 
$793,979 

 

Proposal for Funds 

 

Item  Cost  Department Head 

 

Personnel – IT Position  $  52,611   Mayor 

Personnel – Firefighters  $121,745   Chief White 

 

Fire Truck    $200,000   Chief White 

 

Dump Truck     

Asphalt Roller 

Hotbox Claimer   $125,998   Richard Johnson 

 

Library Floor    $125,000   Tonja Young 

Civic Center Carpet 

Bayfront Decking/Ceiling  $100,434   Margaret Thigpen 

 

F450 Truck    $  32,000   David McKelroy 

Intercom System/ 

Council Chambers   $  14,500   David Cohen 

 

Animal Clinic Repairs  $  20,000   Chief Carpenter  

         (Ric Yelding)   

 TOTAL   $792,288 70



 

CITY OF DAPHNE 

 

ORDINANCE 2012-37 

 

 

APROPRIATION: WEBSITE INTEGRATION FOR ANIMAL SHELTER AND 

LIBRARY DONATIONS 

 

WHEREAS, Ordinance 2011-81 approved and adopted the Fiscal Year 2012 Budget on 

November 21, 2011; and 

 

WHEREAS, subsequent to the adoption of the Fiscal Year 2012 Budget, the City Council has 

determined that certain appropriations are required and should be approved and made part of the 

Fiscal Year 2012 Budget; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Animal Shelter and Library accept donations and believe they will receive more 

donations if they have the capability of accepting online credit card donations; and  

 

WHEREAS, in order for the websites to accept online credit card donations, website integration 

is required; and  

 

WHEREAS, the City Council has determined it to be in the best interest of the City to accept 

credit card donations; and 

 

WHEREAS, an upfront, one-time fee of $ 1,970 is required to modify the websites for the 

acceptance of donations via credit card. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council (the “Council”) of Daphne, 

Alabama (the “City”), that funds in the amount of $1,970 (Animal Shelter $985 & Library $985);  

from the General Fund are hereby appropriated and made a part of the Fiscal Year 2012 Budget 

for website integration to accept Animal Shelter and Library credit card donations.  Furthermore, 

the Finance Department is hereby authorized to open a separate bank account for the receipting 

and processing of such online donations. 
 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED BY THE MAYOR & CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

DAPHNE, ALABAMA, THIS ______DAY OF _________________, 2012. 

 

 

____________________________________ 

CATHY S. BARNETTE, 

COUNCIL PRESIDENT 

 

 

____________________________________ 

BAILEY YELDING, JR., 

MAYOR 

ATTEST: 

 

 

__________________________________ 

DAVID L. COHEN, 

CITY CLERK, MMC 

71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



ORDINANCE 2012 - 38 
 
 

Library Roof Water Test and Repairs Appropriation 
 
 
WHEREAS, Ordinance 2011-81 approved and adopted the Fiscal Year 2012 
Budget on November 21, 2011; and 
 
WHEREAS, subsequent to the adoption of the Fiscal Year 2012 budget, the City 
Council has determined that certain appropriations are required and should be 
approved and made a part of the Fiscal Year 2012 budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Library has had several issues with the roof leaking during rain 
storms, and 
 
WHEREAS, certain improvements and repairs are needed at the Library to 
maintain and protect the building. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, 
Alabama, that funds in the amount of $2,400 from the General Fund are hereby 
appropriated and made a part of the Fiscal Year 2012 budget for water testing and 
repair of the Library Roof. 
 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of 
Daphne, Alabama, this   ____     day of  ________________  , 2012. 
 
 
         
                                                                      ________________________________ 

 Cathy S. Barnette, Council President 
 

                           
 
_________________________________ 

                                                                       Bailey Yelding, Jr., Mayor 
       
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
___________________________ 
David L. Cohen, City Clerk, MMC 

79



ORDINANCE 2012-39 
 
 

Douglas Road Resurfacing to Highway 13 
 
WHEREAS, Ordinance 2011-81 approved and adopted the Fiscal Year 2012 
Budget on November 21, 2011; and 
 
WHEREAS, subsequent to the adoption of the Fiscal Year 2012 budget, the City 
Council has determined that certain appropriations are required and should be 
approved and made a part of the Fiscal Year 2012 budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, Douglas Road needs to be resurfaced and Seven Cent Gas Tax funds 
may be used for such purpose; and 
 
WHEREAS,   the project cost is below the bid limit and, therefore, quotes were 
received; and 
 
WHEREAS, the low quote for construction was $7,172 from American Asphalt, Inc. 
for a total project cost including materials and material testing of $20,430 
(Construction 7,172 + 13,258 materials & testing). 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, 
Alabama, that  

1)  Funds in the amount of $20,430 (includes Materials & Material Testing)  from    
the Seven Cent Gas Tax Fund are hereby appropriated and made a part      
of the Fiscal Year 2012 budget for the Douglas Road Resurfacing 
project.  AND 

2)  American Asphalt, Inc. is hereby awarded the contract in the amount of  
     $ 7,172 and the Mayor is authorized to execute the same. 

 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of 
Daphne, Alabama, this   ____     day of  ________________    , 2012. 
 

 
         
                                                                      ________________________________ 

Cathy S. Barnette, Council President    
 
     

_________________________________ 
                                                                       Bailey Yelding, Jr., Mayor 
           
 
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________ 
David L. Cohen, City Clerk, MMC 

80



CITY OF DAPHNE 

ORDINANCE NO: 2012-40 

 

AN ORDINANCE PROVIDING FOR THE REPEAL OF ORDINANCE NO. 2007-

23; PROVIDING FOR THE ADOPTION OF CERTAIN TECHNICAL CODES BY 

REFERENCE AND 2006-55 RELATING TO BUILDING PERMIT AND                     

RE-INSPECTION FEES 

 
WHEAREAS, THE City Council of the City of Daphne desires to promote the health, safety and 

welfare of the citizens of the City of Daphne By establishing uniform rules and regulations for the 

building, constructing and all other related activities within the City of Daphne; and  

 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Daphne recognizes that the procedures set forth 

hereafter will protect both the City of Daphne and its citizens and the owners of properties 

coming under the jurisdiction of this ordinance and made the subject of these procedures, and  

 

NOW, THEREFORE , BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

DAPHNE, ALABAMA AS FOLLOWS: 
 

Ordinance No. 2007-23 is hereby repealed in its entirety and replaced by the following ordinance: 

 

SECTION 1: TECHNICIAL CODES ADOPTED BY REFERENCE 

 

(a) For the purposes of establishing uniform rules and regulations, the Council hereby 

adopts by reference the following codes and subsequent amendments issued thereto: 

 

1.) International Building Code 2012 edition 

2.) International Fuel Gas Code  2012 edition 

3.) International Plumbing Code, 2012 edition 

4.) International Mechanical Code 2012 edition 

5.) International Residential Code 2012 edition 

6.) International Residential Code Appendix G 2012 edition 

Copyrights 2012 by the International Code Council Incorporated, 

7.) National Electrical Code, 2011 

Copyrights 2010 by the National Fire Prevention Association Incorporated: 

8.) City of Daphne supplemental Code for Residential Structures in addition to the  

      International Residential Code 2012. (attached) 

  

(b) International Building Code, 2012 Edition, International Fuel Gas Code, 2012 Edition, 

International Mechanical Code, 2012 Edition, International Plumbing Code,2012 

Edition, International Residential Code, 2012 Edition, and the National Electrical Code, 

2012 Edition are hereby adopted and incorporated as if fully set out in this section, with 

additions, deletions and changes to the International Residential Code, 2012 Edition as 

prescribed in subsections (c) and from the date on which this ordinance shall take effect, 

the provisions thereof shall be controlling in the construction or alteration, or alteration, 

or repair of all building and other structures therein contained within the corporate limits 

of the City of Daphne. 

(c) The following section of the International Residential Code 2012 Edition is hereby 

revised in its entirety to read as follows: 

 

81



ORDINANCE 2012- 40         2012 INTERNATIONAL BUILDING CODE              PAGE   2 

 

 

R.106.1   Submittal documents. Construction documents, special inspection and         structural 

observation programs and other data shall be submitted in two sets with each application for a 

permit the prepared by a registered design professional for all new residential homes and for 

additions exceeding 750 sq ft. Where special conditions exist, the Building Official is authorized 

to require additional construction documents to be prepared by a registered design professional.   

 

EXCEPTION: The Building Official is authorized to waive the submission of construction 

documents and other data not required to be prepared b a registered design professional if it is 

found that the nature of the work applied for is such that reviewing of construction documents is 

not necessary to obtain compliance with this code. 

 

SECTION II: BUILDING PERMIT FEE SCHEDULE & RE-INSPECTION FEES 

 

(a) New Residential  

  

Building Valuation figured at $60.00/sq. ft. (heated & cooled), $30/sq. ft. (garages 

& porches) 

  

Permits will be $20.00 for the 1st $1000.00 of the contract amount & $5.00 for each additional 

$1000.00 thereafter.  Permit holder will also be charged a plan review and Land Disturbance 

Permit fee. 

  

Plan Review   $25.00  

Land Disturbance  $50.00  

Mechanical   $110.00 flat fee 

Plumbing   $110.00 flat fee 

Electrical   $110.00 flat fee 

 

Miscellaneous Permits  

  

(Additions, Remodels, Repairs, Carports, Garages, Pools, Decks, Fences, Sunrooms, etc.)  

  

Building $20 for 1st $1000 of contract amount, $5 for each additional $1000 thereafter 

Electrical $20 for 1st $1000 of contract amount, $5 for each additional $1000 thereafter 

Mechanical $20 for 1st $1000 of contract amount, $5 for each additional $1000 thereafter 

Plumbing $20 for 1st $1000 of contract amount, $5 for each additional $1000 thereafter 

Well Permit $50.00 flat fee 

 

($20.00 minimum fee for all permits)  

  

Commercial Permits  

  

Building $6.00 per $1000.00 of total contract amount. Permit holder will also be 

charged a Plan Review Fee and must provide proof of site fee payment 

from City of Daphne Community Development office. 

  

Plan Review  $100.00  

Mechanical  1.5% of subcontractors total contract amount 

82



ORDINANCE 2012- 40          2012 INTERNATIONAL BUILDING CODE             PAGE   3 

 

 

Plumbing  1.5% of subcontractors total contract amount 

Electrical  1.5% of subcontractors total contract amount 

Well Permit  $50.00 flat fee 

 

(Commercial Mechanical, Plumbing, and/or Electrical Permits will have a minimum fee of 

$75.00)  

  

Re-Inspection Fees  

  

Fees will only be applied to items on original list.  Any new items will not be considered a re-

inspection at the time of the next inspection.  All re-inspection fees must be paid prior to the re-

inspection.  

  

1st Re-inspection No Charge  

2nd Re-inspection $50.00  

3rd Re-inspection $100.00  

4th Re-inspection $200.00  

 

Stop Work Fee  

  

Any Stop Work Order issued will be charged $100.00 for a re-inspection.  

(b) The above referenced technical codes are hereby adopted as the International Building Codes 

of the City of Daphne. 

 

 (d) Copies of the above referenced codes are on file in the office of the City Clerk. 

 

 

SECTION III:  REPEALER 

 

That any Ordinance heretofore adopted by the council, which is in conflict with this Ordinance is 

hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict. 

 

SECTION IV: EFFECT OF REPEAL 

 

(a) The repeal of Ordinance No. 2007-23 and 2006-55 does not revive any 

previously repealed ordinance. 

(b) The repeal of Ordinance No. 2007-23 and 2006-55 does not effect any 

punishment or penalty incurred before the repeal took effect, nor does such 

repeal effect any suit, prosecution or proceeding pending at the time of the 

repeal. 

 

SECTION VI:  SEVERABILITY 

 

The provisions of this Ordinance are severable. If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, 

phrase, or portion of this ordinance is for any reason held invalid or unconstitutional by any court 

of competent jurisdiction, such portion shall be deemed a separate, distinct and independent 

provision and such holding shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions hereof. 

 

83



ORDINANCE 2012- 40          2012 INTERNATIONAL BUILDING CODE             PAGE   4 
 

 

 

SECTION VII: EFFECTIVE DATE 

 

This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect upon its adoption by the City Council of the City 

of Daphne and publication as required by law. 

 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED THIS ____ DAY OF ___________, 2012. 

 

 

 

                                                                 ______________________________ 

                                                                 CATHY BARNETTE  

                                                                 COUNCIL PRESIDENT  

                                                                

 

                                                                ________________________________ 

                                                                BAILEY YELDING,  

  MAYOR 

                                                                

ATTEST: 

 

 

___________________ 

DAVID L. COHEN, 

CITY CLERK, MMC 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

                                            

84



CITY OF DAPHNE 

ORDINANCE NO.  2012-41 

 

FIRE PREVENTION CODE FOR THE CITY OF DAPHE 

 

AN ORDINANCE TO REPEAL ORDINANCE NO. 2009-37 AND TO ADOPT 

THE 2012 INTERNATIONAL FIRE CODE WITH AMENDMENTS THERETO 

FOR THE CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABMA. 

 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

DAPHNE, ALABAMA THAT: 

 

The 2012 edition of the International Fire Code, copyrighted by the International 

Code Council, with amendments thereto, has heretofore been on file in the Office 

of the City Clerk of the City of Daphne, Alabama, pursuant to Resolution No. 

2012-37 adopted by the City Council of Daphne, Alabama, on the 7
th

 day of May, 

2012. 

   

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF 

THE CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA AS FOLLOWS: 

 

1. That a public hearing shall be held on June 4, 2012 concerning the adoption of 

an ordinance for the 2012 Edition of the International Fire Code and all 

amendments thereto. 

 

2. Said Ordinance shall provide for the amendment, deletion, and changes to the 

International Fire Code, Edition 2012 as follows: 

 

3. The following section of the International Fire Code, Edition 2012, is hereby 

revised in its entirety to read as follows: 

 
A. 

Section 101.1 of the International Fire Code shall be repealed in its entirety and a new 

section 101.1 shall be added to read as follows: 

 

101.1 Title.    These regulations shall be known as the Fire Code of Daphne, hereinafter  

           referred to as “this code.” 

 

B. 

Section 103.1 of the International Fire Code shall be repealed in its entirety and a new 

section 103.1 shall be added to read as follows: 

 

103.1 General.   Bureau of Fire Prevention.  There is hereby established a department              

           to be called the Bureau of Fire Prevention and the person in charge shall 

           be known in this Code as the Fire Code Official, who shall be the Fire  

           Marshal of the City of Daphne. The function of the department shall be  

           the implementation, administration and enforcement of the provisions of  

           this code and amendments. 

 

 
 

85



ORDINANCE 2012-41                     2012 INTERATION FIRE CODE                         PAGE   2 

 

C. 

Section 103.2 Appointment. Of the International Fire Code shall be removed in its 

entirety. 

 

D. 

Section 105.6.30 of the International Fire Code shall be repealed in its entirety and a new 

section 105.6.30 shall be added to read as follows. 

Open Burning 

No person shall kindle or maintain any bonfire or rubbish fire or authorize 

any such fire to be kindled or maintained without a permit or other proper 

authorization. 

 No waste materials, rubbish, trees, bushes or brush cleared for 

construction or demolition of buildings or structures shall be disposed of 

by burning on the premises or in the immediate vicinity by the owner, the 

contractor, or any other person, unless a permit or other proper 

authorization has been obtained to burn said waste materials in an 

approved waste burner/incinerator.       

 

The permit for each approved waste burner/incinerator shall be      

$75.00.  

 

E. 

Section 105.7.1 of the International Fire Code shall be repealed in its entirety and a new 

section 105.7.1 shall be added to read as follows: 

 

Fixed Fire Extinguishing Systems Installation 

 

No person shall engage in the business of installing fixed fire 

extinguishing systems without obtaining a permit from the Bureau of Fire 

Prevention. 

 

No person shall install a fixed fire extinguishing system without obtaining 

a current City of Daphne business license. 

 

No person shall be issued a permit to install fixed fire extinguishing 

equipment who does not possess a manufacturers certification for 

installation and servicing for the type system being installed and have a 

Certificate of Insurance, General Liability for $ 1,000,000 with the City of 

Daphne, Bureau of Fire Prevention, P.O. Box 400, Daphne AL. 36526 

listed as a Certificate Holder. 

 

Any modifications made to a fixed system including adding additional 

flow points will require an installation permit. 

   

 A complete plan/drawing of the system and the devices that are being  

protected shall be submitted before a permit is issued and a copy shall be 

placed in the control box.   

 

 

86



ORDINANCE 2012-41                     2012 INTERATION FIRE CODE                         PAGE   3 

   

The technician who actually performs the installation of the fixed fire 

extinguishing systems shall legibly sign and date the service tag verifying 

that all work was done in compliance with current NFPA standards. 

  

 The Fire Code Official shall require certain operational tests upon final 

inspection. 

 

The permit fee for each fire extinguisher system installation shall be  

$75.00. 

 

Section 105.7.1.1 

 

Servicing Fixed Fire Extinguishing Systems 

 

No person shall engage in the business of servicing or inspecting fixed fire 

extinguishing systems without obtaining a permit from the Bureau of Fire 

Prevention. The permit is good only for that calendar year of which it is 

issued. 

 

No person shall service or inspect a fixed fire extinguishing system 

without obtaining a current City of Daphne business license. 

 

No person shall be issued a permit to service or inspect fixed fire 

extinguishing equipment who does not possess a manufacturers 

certification for installation and servicing for the type system being 

installed and have a Certificate of Insurance, General Liability for $ 

1,000,000 with the City of Daphne, Bureau of Fire Prevention, P.O. Box 

400, Daphne AL. 36526 listed as a Certificate Holder. 

   

Any modifications made to a fixed system including adding additional 

flow points will require an installation permit. 

   

  A complete plan/drawing of the system and the devices that are being  

protected shall be submitted before a permit is issued and a copy shall be 

placed in the control box.   

 

The technician who actually performs the work of servicing or inspecting 

the fixed fire extinguishing systems shall legibly sign and date the service 

tag verifying that all work was done in compliance with current NFPA 

standards. 

 

A permit is not required for follow up inspection or service, if a permit 

was received for that system in the same year.  However a report shall be  

furnished to the Bureau of Fire Prevention upon completion of work being 

done. 

 

The permit fee for servicing a fixed fire extinguisher system shall be 

$75.00. 

 

87



ORDINANCE 2012-41                     2012 INTERATION FIRE CODE                         PAGE   4 
 

F. 

Section 105.7.6 of the International Fire Code shall be repealed in its entirety and a new 

section 105.7.6 shall read as follows: 

 

Section 105.7.6 

Fire Alarm System Installation 

 

No person shall install a fire alarm system without having the plans 

reviewed by the Fire Code Official before commencing any part of the 

work. No person shall commence working on a fire alarm system without 

first obtaining a permit from the Bureau of Fire Prevention. 

 

There is excepted from the requirements of this Section 105.7.4.1 

installations in any building with single station detectors only. 

 

Installer must possess a State Fire Alarm Permit issued by the State Fire 

Marshals office. 

 

Any person or entity who designs fire alarm systems must possess a State 

Fire Alarm Permit issued by the State Fire Marshals office. 

    

   Licensed electricians may pull wire, mount ancillary equipment, and 

connect the main power to the control panel after a permit has been issued; 

but no one other than a qualified fire alarm installer shall be allowed to 

make any other connections inside the control panel. 

    

   A certified fire sprinkler installer may install devices integral to the 

operation of the fire sprinkler system, but shall not make and connections 

to the fire alarm system. 

    

   Upon final inspection, the NFPA Fire Alarm System Record of 

Completion form must be properly filled out and submitted to the Fire 

Code Official and a fire alarm system test must be performed in the 

presence of the Fire Code Official. 

 

   All fire alarm circuit disconnecting means shall have a red marking and 

shall be identified as “Fire Alarm”. 

  

Fire Alarm Control Units (FACU) will be located at the entrance of the 

building or provide an annunciator panel at the entrance and also indicate 

the location of the main panel. 

    

   The permit fee for installing a fire alarm system shall be $75.00. 

 

Section 105.7.6.1 

Servicing Fire Alarm Systems 

      

No person shall engage in the business of servicing fire alarm systems 

without obtaining a permit from the Fire Code Official. The permit is good  

88



ORDINANCE 2012-41                     2012 INTERATION FIRE CODE                         PAGE   5 
 

only for that calendar year of which it is issued. There is excepted from 

the requirements of Section 105.7.4 installations of the following types: 

 

(1) One and two family dwellings 

(2) Any buildings with single station detectors only. 

(3) Owners of buildings may maintain their own systems as long as 

their maintenance person is certified by the manufacturer of the 

installed equipment or has National Institute for Certification in 

Engineering Technologies (NICET) level II in fire alarms. 

 

   No person shall be issued a permit to modify, repair, test or service fire 

alarm systems who does not possess a State of Alabama Fire Alarm Permit 

issued by the State Fire Marshals office. 

            

A service tag or sticker shall be required to be installed by the permitted 

alarm servicing individual or company at the control panel of each fire 

alarm system, stating the company’s name, address, phone number, name 

of the technician performing the service, date and the type of service 

performed.  

 

The permit fee to service a fire alarm system shall be $75.00. 

 

G. 

Section 105.7.7 of the International Fire Code shall be repealed in its entirety and a new 

section 105.7.7 shall be added to read as follows: 

 

Fire Pumps Installation 

 

Any person who installs fire pumps must be licensed by the Alabama State 

Fire Marshal’s Office and approved by the Fire Code Official. 

 

No person shall install a fire pump without first obtaining a permit from 

the Bureau of Fire Prevention. 

 

  Installer must possess a current City of Daphne business license and have 

a Certificate of Insurance, General Liability for $1,000,000 with the City 

of Daphne, Bureau of Fire Prevention, P.O. Box 400, Daphne AL. 36526 

listed as a Certificate Holder. 

 

   Installer must have fire pump plans reviewed by the Fire Code Official 

before commencing installation. 

 

All testing of the fire pump shall comply with NFPA 25. The Fire Code 

Official may require certain operational test upon final inspection. 

 

The permit fee to install a fire pump shall be $75.00. 

 

 

 

89



ORDINANCE 2012-41                     2012 INTERATION FIRE CODE                         PAGE   6 
 

Section 105.7.7.1 shall be added to read as follows: 

    

  Servicing Fire Pumps 

 

Any person who services, test or inspects fire pumps must be licensed by 

the Alabama State Fire Marshal’s Office and approved by the Fire Code 

Official. 

 

No person shall service, test or inspect a fire pump without first obtaining 

a permit from the Bureau of Fire Prevention. 

 

 The Person/Business who obtains the permit must possess a current City 

of Daphne business license and have a Certificate of Insurance, General 

Liability for $1,000,000 with the City of Daphne, Bureau of Fire 

Prevention, P.O. Box 400, Daphne AL. 36526 listed as a Certificate 

Holder 

 

  The permit fee to service, test or inspect a fire pump shall be $75.00. 

 

H. 

Section 105.7.17 shall be added to read as follows:    

   

Portable Fire Extinguisher Service 

No person shall engage in the business of servicing portable fire 

extinguishers without obtaining a permit from the Bureau of Fire 

Prevention. The permit is good only for that calendar year of which it is 

issued. 

 

 No person shall service portable fire extinguishers without obtaining a 

current City of Daphne business license. 

  

No person shall be issued a permit to service a portable fire extinguisher 

that does not posses a manufactures service manual for the type of 

extinguisher being serviced, and have the proper training. They shall have 

a Certificate of Insurance, General Liability for $1,000,000 with the City 

of Daphne, Bureau of Fire Prevention, P.O. Box 400 Daphne, AL 36526 

listed as a Certificate Holder.  

 

The technician who actually performs the work of servicing the portable 

fire extinguishers shall legibly sign and date the service tag verifying that 

all work was done in compliance with current NFPA standards. 

 

  The annual permit fee for portable fire extinguisher service shall be   

$75.00. 

 

 

 

 

 

90



ORDINANCE 2012-41                     2012 INTERATION FIRE CODE                         PAGE   7 
 

I. 

Section 105.7.18 shall be added to read as follows: 

Install Automatic Fire Sprinkler Systems 

     

   No person shall install, modify or repair an automatic fire sprinkler system 

without obtaining a permit from the Bureau of Fire Prevention. 

 

  Any person who installs or maintains fire sprinkler systems (hereinafter 

called in Section 402.35 “installer”) must be certified by the Alabama 

State Fire Marshal’s Office, and have a Certificate of Insurance, General 

Liability for $1,000,000 with the City of Daphne, Bureau of Fire 

Prevention, P.O. Box 400, Daphne AL. 36526 listed as a Certificate 

Holder. 

 

   Installer must possess a current City of Daphne business license. 

 

   Installer must have sprinkler plans reviewed by the Fire Code Official 

before commencing installation. 

     

   Upon final inspection, the National Fire Protection Association (NFPA) 

Contractor's Material and Test Certificate for Aboveground Piping must 

be properly completed and submitted to the Bureau of Fire Prevention. 

 

    The Fire Code Official shall be present during the final inspection of the 

sprinkler system. 

 

  Relocating more than three (3) sprinkler heads in an existing fire sprinkler 

system shall require a permit from the Bureau of Fire Prevention..  

  

                       The permit fee for each automatic fire sprinkler system installation        

                       shall be $75.00. 

 

Section 105.7.18.1 shall be added to read as follows: 

Servicing Fire Sprinkler Systems 

              No person shall service or inspect an automatic fire sprinkler system 

without obtaining a permit from the Bureau of Fire Prevention. 

              

Any person who services or maintains fire sprinkler systems must be 

certified by the Alabama State Fire Marshal’s Office, and have a 

Certificate of Insurance, General Liability for $1,000,000 with the City of 

Daphne, Bureau of Fire Prevention, P.O. Box 400, Daphne AL. 36526 

listed as a Certificate Holder. 

 

              No person shall perform maintenance or testing on fire sprinkler systems  

              unless that person is certified by the Alabama State Fire Marshal’s office  

                   and approved by the Fire Code Official. 

 

   Installer must possess a current City of Daphne business license. 

    

91



ORDINANCE 2012-41                     2012 INTERATION FIRE CODE                         PAGE   8 
 

   The permit fee for servicing a fire sprinkler system shall be $75.00. 

 

The permit is good only for that calendar year of which it is issued. 

 

J. 

Section 105.7.19 shall be added to read as follows: 

Additional Permits 

Where work for which a permit is required by this code commences prior 

to obtaining said permit, the permit fee herein specified shall be doubled. 

 

 It shall be required that a copy of all annual or semi-annual inspection 

reports be submitted to the Bureau of Fire Prevention with any and all 

deficiencies clearly noted. 

 

 All checks and money orders shall be made out to the City of Daphne. 

 

 All certifications whether they are manufacture or NICET must be current 

and not have expired.  

 

                        General requirements for a permit are as followed: 

                        1. Current city of Daphne Business license. 

                        2. Current one million dollar ($1,000,000) general liability insurance     

                            policy with the City  of Daphne listed as a certificate holder, P.O. Box    

                            400 Daphne AL 36526.   

                        3. Approved by the Fire Code Official. 

  4. Current Training certificates. 

  5. Permit fee of $75.00 

K. 

Section 109.4 Violation penalties.  

Persons who shall violate a provision of this code, or shall fail to comply with any 

of the requirements thereof, or who shall erect, install, alter, repair or do work in 

violation of the approved construction documents or directive of the fire code 

official, or of a permit or certificate used under provisions of this code, shall be 

guilty of a violation of the 2012 Edition of the International Fire Code, as 

amended, which is punishable by a fine of not more than Two Hundred ($200) 

dollars. Each day that a violation continues after due notice has been served shall 

be deemed a separate offense. 

  

L. 

Section 307.2.1 of the International Fire Code shall be repealed in its entirety and a new 

section 307.2.1 shall read as follows: 

 

 Authorization. 

 

Open burning shall only be allowed once a calendar month per address/ 

location during the months that outdoor burning is allowed by the State 

Air Quality Agencies. A permit must be obtained before any burning starts 

and all provisions of the burn permit shall be followed. 

 

92



ORDINANCE 2012-41                     2012 INTERATION FIRE CODE                         PAGE   9 
 

M. 

Section 307.4.1 of the International Fire Code shall be repealed in its entirety and a new 

section 307.4.1 shall read as follows: 

 

Bonfires. 

 

A bonfire shall not be conducted within 50 feet (15 240 mm) of a structure 

or combustible material unless the fire is contained in a barbecue pit. 

Conditions which could cause a fire to spread within 50 feet (15 240 mm) 

of a structure shall be eliminated prior to ignition. Bonfire permits shall 

only be issued to organizations (Churches, Schools, and other Civic 

Groups) not to private individuals.  

 

N. 

Section 503.2.5 of the International Fire Code shall be repealed in its entirety and a new 

section 503.2.5 shall read as follows: 

  

Dead ends. 

 

Dead-end fire apparatus access roads in excess of 150 feet (45 720 mm) in 

length shall be provided with an approved area for turning around fire 

apparatus per the provisions in accordance with Appendix D, Table 

D103.4. and figure D103.1.  

 

O. 

Section 505.1 of the International Fire Code that reads “Numbers shall be a minimum of  

4 inches high with a minimum stroke width of 0.5 inches” shall be repealed and 

shall read “numbers shall be a minimum of 5 inches high with a minimum stroke 

of 0.5 inches”.   

 

P. 

Section 506.1 of the International Fire Code shall be repealed in its entirety and a new 

section 506.1 shall read as follows: 

  

 Key boxes.  Key boxes shall be installed in all buildings having an 

automatic fire sprinkler system, fire alarm system or any alarm that 

generates a fire department response.  The Fire Code Official shall also 

have the authority to require a key box to be installed in an accessible 

location where access to or within a structure or area is difficult because of 

security. The key box shall be of and approved type and shall contain keys 

to gain necessary access as required by the Fire Code Official. 

Q.  

Section 507.5.1.1 of the International Fire Code shall be repealed  in its entirety and a 

new section 507.5.1.1 shall read as follows. 

   

Hydrant for Fire Sprinkler Systems and Standpipe Systems. Building equipped 

with a standpipe or fire sprinkler system installed in accordance with Section 903 

and 905 shall have a fire hydrant within 100 feet of the FDC (fire department 

connection).  

93



ORDINANCE 2012-41                     2012 INTERATION FIRE CODE                         PAGE   10 
 

 

R. 

508.5.7 Hydrant Outlet Location shall be added to read as follows: 

Hydrants shall be installed with the center of the outlet cap nut at least 18 

inches above the adjoining final grade. 

 

S.  

Section 905.3.1 of the International Fire Code shall be repealed in its entirety and a new 

section 905.3.1 shall read as follows: 

 

Building height. 

 

Class III standpipe systems shall be installed throughout buildings where 

the floor level of the highest story is located more than 30 feet (9144 mm) 

above the lowest level of the fire department vehicle access, or where the 

floor level of the lowest story is located more than 30 feet (9144 mm) 

below the highest level of fire department vehicle access. A class I, 

Manual Wet, standpipe system shall be installed in building where the 

floor level is of the highest story is located more than 20 feet above the 

lowest level of the fire department vehicle access. 

 

 

 

SECTION 3:   ORDINANCES REPEALED 

 
Ordinance 2009-37 shall be repealed in its entirety, replaced with the provisions of this 

Ordinance. All other ordinances and parts of ordinances in conflict with the provisions of 

this Ordinance are hereby repealed. 

 

SECETION 4:  SEVERABILITY 

 
If any provision of this Ordinance is held to be invalid or unenforceable for any reason, 

such holding shall not in any way effect the remaining portions hereof, which shall 

remain in full force and effect. 

 

 

SECTION 5:   EFFECTIVE DATE 

 

This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect and be in force from and after the date of 

its approval by the City Council of Daphne and publication as required by law. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
94



ORDINANCE 2012-41                     2012 INTERATION FIRE CODE                         PAGE   11 
 

 

ADOPTED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

DAPHNE THIS _____ DAY OF ________ 2012. 

 

 

 

            

     Cathy Barnette,  

Council President 

      

 

            

     Bailey Yelding,  

Mayor 

      

ATTEST: 

 

 

      

David L. Cohen,  

City Clerk, MMC 

      

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

95



 

 

CITY OF DAPHNE 

ORDINANCE NO.  2012-42 

 
 
 

AN   ORDINANCE   ADDING/AMENDING   THE  CITY  OF  DAPHNE, ALABAMA 

LAND USE AND DEVELOPMENT  ORDINANCE 2011-54, as ADOPTED by the CITY 

COUNCIL ON JULY 18, 2011  

 
WHEREAS,  the City Council of the City of Daphne, after due consideration believes that 

certain revisions to the City of Daphne Land Use & Development Ordinance are  necessary for the proper 

administration of said Ordinance; and 

 

WHEREAS, The City of Daphne Planning Commission reviewed such changes at its regularly 

scheduled Commission meeting  on the 26
th
 day of April, 2012, and has made a favorable 

recommendation for adoption to the City Council; and 

 

WHEREAS, due notice of said proposed amendment has been provided to the public as required 

by law through publication and open display at the Daphne Public Library and City Hall, a public Hearing 

was held before the City Council on June 4, 2012. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

DAPHNE, ALABAMA AS FOLLOWS: 

 

SECTION I:  AMENDMENT 

 

 That Article XIX entitled “Landscape and Tree Protection”, denoted as section 19-8(b), and is 

hereby deleted in its entirety and is replaced as follows: 

 

19-8 (b) the following apply: 

 

(b)  Perimeter area requirements (side and rear property lines) shall apply except in a planned 

business and/or commercial park zoned B-2, General Business or C/I, Commercial/Industrial 

where side yards and/or rear yards abut other property zoned C/I or B-2. 

 

i. Either overstory or understory trees shall be planted for every fifty (50) feet of  

the perimeter property lines.  Perimeter areas are side and rear property line 

landscape setbacks. 

 

ii. Side and rear property lines shall have a six (6) feet greenbelt. 

              

                        

SECTION II: AMENDMENT 
 

               That Article XXXII entitled “Telecommunication Towers and Facilities Provisions”, denoted 

as section 32-3(d) 3, shall include a new subscription (i) which shall provide as follows: 

 

(i) Any request for modification of an existing wireless tower and/or base station shall be 

approved unless the same shall increase the physical dimensions of the tower or base 

station by thirty percent (30%) or more. 

 

 

96



 

 

 

 

ORDINANCE 2012-42              AMENDING THE LAND USE ORDINANCE                  PAGE   2   

 

 

 SECTION III: CONFLICT WITH OTHER ORDINANCES 

 

  That any Ordinance heretofore adopted by the City Council of Daphne, Alabama, which is in 

conflict with this Ordinance, be and  is hereby placed to the extent of such conflict. 

    
SECTION IV. SEVERABILITY 

 

 That the provisions of this Ordinance are severable.  If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, 

phrase, or portion of this ordinance is for any reason held invalid or unconstitutional by any court of 

competent jurisdiction, such portion shall be deemed a separate, distinct and independent provision and 

such holding shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions hereof.  

 

SECTION IV: EFFECTIVE DATE. 

        This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after the date of its approval by the City 

Council of the City of Daphne and publication as required by law. 

 

ADOPTED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, 

ALABAMA, THIS ______  DAY OF __________, 2012. 

 

 

_____________________________________ 

   CATHY S. BARNETTE, 

                                                     COUNCIL PRESIDENT 

           

 

 

                                                   

_____________________________________ 

BAILEY YELDING, JR.,  

MAYOR                                         

             

 

ATTEST: 

 

_____________________________ 

DAVID COHEN,  

CITY CLERK, MMC 

97



 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2012-43 

 

AN ORDINANCE FIXING AND ESTABLISHING SPEED LIMITS IN THE CITY 

OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA 

 

 

WHEREAS, on the February 2 and 3, 2012, the Alabama Department of Transportation, 

being the owner of the roadway herein described, did conduct a Speed Study and 

determined that that an increase of the posted speed limit was warranted; and 

 

WHEREAS, per written request, dated April 5, 2012, from Daniel Driskell, P.E., an 

authorized agent of the State of Alabama Department of Transportation, whereby the State 

of Alabama request of the City of Daphne, Alabama to take action to endorse the warranted 

increase of the posted speed limit; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Daphne, Alabama, desires to increase the posted speed limit to 

promote the health, safety, and welfare purposes of the traveling public; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Daphne determine it is in the public interest 

that said posted speed limit be increased and that all legal requirements for fixing and 

establishing said posted speed limit have been met pursuant to Section ##-##-##, Code of 

Alabama (1975); 

 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

 

SECTION I.  No person shall operate a motor vehicle at a greater speed than fifty-

five (55) miles per hour in the following listed zones of the City. 

 

(1) On AL 181 from the Milepost 16.35 (Node 8834 – U.S. Highway 90 

intersection) to the South City Limits. 

 

SECTION II.  All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with this ordinance 

are hereby repealed. 

 

SECTION III.  EFFECTIVE DATE 

 

(1) This Ordinance shall become effective immediately and be in full force after final 

passage and publication as required by law. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

98



 

 

 
ORDINANCE 2012-42             ADJUST SPEED LIMIT ON HWY 181                 PAGE   2 

 

 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

DAPHNE, ALABAMA ON THIS THE    DAY OF  , 2012. 

 

 

      CITY OF DAPHNE 

 

 

 

      ________________________________ 

      Cathy S. Barnette 

      Council President 

 

 

 

 

________________________________ 

      Bailey Yelding, Jr. 

      Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_____________________________ 

David Cohen 

City Clerk, MMC 

 

 

 

APPROVED:     APPROVED: 

 

 

______________________________ __________________________________ 

Mr. Vincent Calametti, P.E.   Mr. George Conner, P.E. 

Ninth Division Engineer   State Maintenance Engineer 

 

 

99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111


	AGENDA - June 4.pdf
	City Roll Call.pdf
	Council Minutes - May 21.pdf
	Public Hearing Info.pdf
	Reporting of Standing Committees.pdf
	Special Reports.pdf
	DRA Minutes - May 30.pdf
	Planning Commission Minutes.pdf
	Mayors Report.pdf
	City Attorneys and Department Head Report.pdf
	RESOLUTION - ORDINANCES - DIVIDER PAGE.pdf
	2012-35 - RES - Well Road Extension to Hwy 13- 2012.pdf
	2012-33 - ORD - Well Road Extension to Hwy 13.pdf
	2012-34 - ORD - EmployeeManualRevisions1 1.pdf
	2012-35 - ORD -  NoiseOrdAmend2 1.pdf
	2012-36 - ORD - Personnel and Capital.pdf
	Backup to 2012-36 - ORD.pdf
	2012-37 - ORD - Animal Shelter  Library Website Intergration Appropriation (5 11 12).pdf
	Backup to 2012-37 - ORD.pdf
	2012-38 - ORD - Library Roof Water Test  Repair.pdf
	2012-39 - ORD - Douglas Road Resurfacing-7 Cent.pdf
	2012-40 - ORD - BUILDING CODE - Repeal 2007-23.pdf
	2012-41 - ORD - 2012 Fire Code.pdf
	2012-42 - ORD - AMEND LUO - LANDSCAPE & COMMUNICATION TOWERS.pdf
	2012-43 - ORD - SR181 55 mph Speed Limit Daphne Ordinance.pdf
	Backup to 2012-43 - ORD.pdf

